# CONTRACTOR MANPOWER REPORTING



# **Contractor Manpower Reporting Application Version 3.11**



# **Full User Guide**

Updated 4/10/14

Table	of	Contents
1 4010	UI.	Contents

	Table of Contents
1.	INTRODUCTION
	1.1 Purpose and Scope
	1.2 Notation Conventions
2.	CMRA REQUIREMENTS 4
	2.1 System Requirements
	2.2 User Roles
3.	CMRA GENERAL WEBSITE INFORMATION
	3.1 Website Navigation5
	3.2 Home
	3.3 Help & References
	3.4 Edit Profile
	3.5 Log out
	3.6 General Functionality
4.	SYSTEM ACCESS 10
	4.1 User Login 10
	4.2 CMRA New User Registration 11
	4.3 Lost/Reset Password13
	4.4 Expired Password14
	4.5 Expired Account
5.	CONTRACT SEARCH, CREATION, OR EDITING
	5.1 Contract Search
	5.2 Contract Creation
	5.3 Edit Contract Data 21
6.	ORDER SEARCH, CREATION, OR EDITING
	6.1 Order Search
	6.2 Order Creation
	6.3 Order Editing
	6.4 Contact Data:
	6.5 Location Data:
	6.6 Bulk Loader:
	6.7 Fund Cite Data:
7.	REPORTS
	7.1 View Report
	7.2 Export Report
	7.3 Marking FOUO Information

# **1. INTRODUCTION**

What is the Contractor Manpower Reporting Application (CMRA)?

The CMRA is an online database that automates the Department of the Navy's (DON) contract management and reporting process. Based on the contract data in the application, users can enter their contract information, track contract data, and view reports. The CMR business process captures many pieces of information including funding source, contracting vehicle, organization supported, mission and function performed, labor hours, and labor costs for contracted efforts. It enables the DON to:

- Fully understand the total DON workforce
- Provide better oversight of the workforce
- Ensure DON receives full value from contractor workforce

#### **<u>1.1 Purpose and Scope</u>**

This manual contains general information in order to help you use the CMRA effectively. There is a procedure for each application process or function that the application can perform. This user manual is intended for anyone who needs to use the CMRA to report, view, and track contract data on the CMRA website. **More specific, detailed information is available in the role-specific user guides that are also available in the Help Resources section of the application.** 

#### **<u>1.2 Notation Conventions</u>**

The following conventions apply to uses that appear throughout this user manual:

**Bold** typeface is used to denote the following elements of the CMRA user interface:

- Buttons
- Check boxes
- Field Names
- Tabs

*Italic* typeface is used for hyperlinks and any other special references on the screen within the CMRA user interface.

Quotation marks ("") indicate the title of a screen name or page within the CMRA website.

# 2. CMRA REQUIREMENTS

#### 2.1 System Requirements

To use the CMRA on a Windows PC, you must have the following:

- Internet Explorer (IE) 7.0+
- Minimum memory of 512 megabytes (MB)
- Screen resolution of 1024 x 768 pixels per inch or higher
- Adobe Acrobat Reader for displaying PDF files
- JavaScript enabled on your internet browser

#### 2.2 User Roles

Users will assign themselves at least one of the following roles when creating an account with the CMRA:

User Role	Explanation of User Role
Contracting Officer (KO)	A person with the authority to enter into, administer, and/or terminate contracts and make related determinations and findings on behalf of the federal government.
Contracting Officer Representative (COR) or Contracting Officer Technical Representative (COTR)	A qualified individual designated by the contracting officer to assist in the technical monitoring or administration of a contract.
Prime Contractor	A person or corporation who has been contracted by the DON to perform work at a DON military post or other location.
Subcontractor	Company contracted by a general or prime contractor to perform work on a contract for a government organization.
Requiring Activity Manager (RA)	DON Activity for which the contracted services are being provided.
Resource Manager (RM)	Managers of Resources in the DON who will use CMRA data to generate information, useful as a baseline for programming and documenting contractor support, in terms of manpower and dollars. Additionally, RM's are tasked with validating and correcting CMRA inputs from their respective organizations and with submitting data for contracts that have not been input by contractors working on service contracts for their commands.

*Note:* Each user role will have certain permissions to view and edit specific contract data. Users are unable to register for the System Administrator role.

# 3. CMRA GENERAL WEBSITE INFORMATION

#### 3.1 Website Navigation

Every screen within the CMRA has the following links located on the top right side of the screen:

Contract Search Report	System Administration	KEFUKIING Welcome <b>Test Use</b> You are logged in as a <b>System Administrato</b>
Security for the Construct Number		Help and Definitions
Fill out at least one of the search Contract Number	h fields below to search for a contract. r: Enter at least 6 digits of the 13 digit DoD contra	These links open in a new window View User Manuals, Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ) and Glossary

- *Home* Takes the authorized user to the CMRA "Home" Contract Search screen.
- *Help & References* Provides the authorized user with Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs), glossary of terms, Department of Defense and DON reference documents, and any other user-based help information.
- *Edit Profile* Takes the authorized user to the profile page where the profile may be edited by the user.
- *Logout* Takes the authorized user to a safe and secure logout of the CMRA (also includes a link to log back into the application).

#### Note

• Any one of the website navigation links may be accessed at any time while navigating within the CMRA website as long as you are logged into the system.

#### **3.2 Home**

The CRMA website may be accessed via the following URL: https://doncmra.nmci.navy.mil

Upon entrance to the CMRA site, DTM 08-060 disclaimer is displayed. Once you have read the Disclaimer, click **I** Agree in order to enter and use the application. The user must accept the compliance agreement in order to advance to the Login screen that is shown in the image below.

<image/>	0	DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY CONTRACTOR MANPOWER REPORTING	
		Login Username: Username is your email address Password: User Role: Prime Contractor Submit Lost / Reset Password Register for your new CMRA Account	<ul> <li>Help Resources</li> <li>Help Resources</li> <li>Unks open in a new window.</li> <li>Yiew User Manuals, Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ) and Glossary</li> <li>Send an email</li> </ul>

The CMRA Home screen contains the following links:

- *Lost/Reset Password* Takes the authorized user to the page where a valid email address can be used to reset a password
- *Register for your new CMRA Account* Takes the authorized user to the page where a new user account can be requested
- *View User Manuals, Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ) and Glossary* Allows anyone to view links to the glossary, FAQs, this CMRA Full User Guide, and the role-specific user guides
- *Send an email* Opens the user's email client and addresses a new email to the Help Desk at doncmra@avum.com.

At the bottom of every page, you will notice the following links that you may choose to look at if necessary:

- Security Notice Takes the authorized user to the "Security Notice" screen
- *Privacy Statement* Takes the authorized user to the "Privacy Statement" screen
- Accessibility/Section 508 Takes the authorized user to the Department of Defense Section 508 web page

#### 3.3 Help & References

The *Help & References* menu provides users useful information in reference to the Contractor Manpower Reporting (CMR) process and the application. Reference documents are also posted there.

After clicking on the *Help & References* link, the navigation bar to the left provides the following help features as shown in the image below:

- CMRA Overview Provides the user with an overview of CMRA and background information
- *Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs)*—Displays answers to the most frequently asked questions users tend to have
- Glossary Provides definitions of terms featured throughout the CMRA
- Full User Guide (PDF) Provides a link to this manual
- PDF Guides by Role Provides the user manuals with detailed information for each of the specific roles
- *Get the PDF Reader from Adobe* Provides a link to download the software required to view PDF files.



#### 3.4 Edit Profile

The *Edit Profile* screen allows you to update your profile information.

0	DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY CONTRACTOR MANPOWER REPORTING
Contract Search Repo	Welcome <b>Test User</b> rts You are logged in as a <b>Prime Contractor</b>
Edit Profile	
First Name:	Test
Last Name:	User
Phone Number:	1234567890
	Formatting allowed for US and international phone numbers (e.g., (ddd) ddd-dddd or +dd-ddd- ddddddd); alpha characters not allowed except X as a prefix for an extension.
Email Address:	testuser@contractor.mail
	<ul> <li>Contracting Officers(KO), Contracting Officer Representatives, and Contracting Officer Techinical Representatives must have a .mil, .gov, or usna.edu email address.</li> <li>Contractors and Subcontractors may not have a .mil, .gov, or usna.edu email address.</li> </ul>
Password:	Password must be 15 to 30 characters in length. Password will be a mix of uppercase letters,
	<ul> <li>Contains at least 2 uppercase characters as follows:</li> <li>Contains at least 2 uppercase characters: A,B,C, etc.</li> <li>Contains at least 2 lowercase characters: a,b,c, etc.</li> <li>Contains at least 2 numbers: 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,0</li> <li>Contains at least 2 special characters: ! @ # \$ % ^ &amp; * () _ +   ~ - = \ ` { } [ ] : "; ' &gt; ? , ./</li> <li>Cannot be any of the last 10 passwords used.</li> <li>Cannot contain any other user account information: name, phone, email, etc.</li> </ul>
Confirm Password:	
Cage Code:	Please re-enter your password for verification. 1A253 Enter your 5 character Cage Code. A Cage Code is used to identify companies doing or wishing to do business with the federal government.

Profile data that may be updated includes:

- First Name
- Last Name
- Phone Number
- Email Address
- Password
- Cage Code \*For Prime Contractor and Subcontractor user roles only.
- Requiring Activity \*\* For Requiring Activity user roles only.
- Command \*\*\* For Resource Manager user roles only.

#### Note

• A change in user role must be reviewed and approved by the System Administrator. Therefore, any changes to the user role must be submitted as a request to the Help Desk. Click the *Send Email* link on the home page to send an email to the Help Desk.

#### 3.5 Log out

You may exit the application at any time by clicking on the *Log out* link. A confirmation message will be displayed. Once you click to confirm that you want to log out, another message is displayed on the screen indicating that you have been successfully logged out.

#### Note

• If you exit the application by simply closing the browser, the application will close and any unsaved information from that session will be discarded. Also, if there is no activity in the CMRA for 15 continuous minutes, the application is designed to protect the data already saved by terminating and closing the session.

#### **3.6 General Functionality**

The following buttons have the same functionality regardless of which screen the button is found on:

- Cancel Returns the user to the previous screen
- Edit Allows the user to edit the field(s) on the screen
- **Reset** Clears any information entered in all field(s) on the screen. No cleared information will be saved.
- \* -- The red asterisk symbol indicates that the adjacent field is a required entry

#### Note

• Please use buttons and links in CMRA to move to the next screen or to a previous screen. Do not use the Back button on your browser.

### 4. SYSTEM ACCESS

#### 4.1 User Login

The image below shows the login screen that you can use to access the application after you have registered and have received an email that your new account has been approved.

Ø 🛞 😵 C	DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY	ING
<image/>	Login	Help Resources Links open in a new window. View User Manuals, Frequently Asked Glossary Send an email
DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY		

All users must log in using their Username, Password, and selection of User Role.

Username:

Your Username is the email address that you registered with.

Password:

The following requirements are necessary to create an appropriate password:

- 1. Password must be 15 to 30 characters in length.
- 2. Password will be a mix of uppercase letters, lowercase letters, numbers, and special characters as follows:
  - a. Contains at least 2 uppercase characters: A, B, C, etc.
  - b. Contains at least 2 lowercase characters: a, b, c, etc.
  - c. Contains at least 2 numbers: 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 0
  - d. Contains at least 2 special characters: i.e.  $! @ \# \% ^ \& * () + | \sim = \setminus$ { } [ ]:";' >?,./
- 3. Cannot be any of the last 10 passwords used.
- 4. Cannot contain any other user account information: name, phone, email, etc.

User Role: Reflects the nature of the work you will perform in the application and will determine the functions that you can use in CMRA to complete that work. All user roles require a valid email address and email addresses can only be registered once.

#### Note

You may need to register for more than one role during registration. Please carefully ٠ read the on-screen guidance. After registration, roles can only be changed by a System Administrator.

#### 4.2 CMRA New User Registration

If you do not currently have a Department of the Navy CMRA account, select the **Register for your new CMRA Account** link on the Login screen.

You may not use an Army, Air Force or Other Defense Agency CMRA account to access the DON CMRA.

On the **New User Registration** screen, enter the required information in all fields and select the applicable user role(s). Carefully read the on-screen guidance regarding the selection of **Role Type**.

MDA New Lleer Desist	ration
MRA New User Regist	
li rields are required. First Namo:	
First Name.	
Last Name:	
Phone Number:	
	Formatting allowed for US and international phone numbers (e.g., (ddd) ddd-dddd or +dd-dddddddd); alpha characters not allowed except X as a prefix for an extension.
Email Address:	
	Your email address will be your CMRA username.
	<ul> <li>Contracting Officers(KO), Contracting Officer Representatives, Contracting Officer Technical Representative Requiring Activity and Resource Manager must have a .mil, .gov, or usna.edu email address.</li> <li>Prime Contractors and Subcontractors may not have a .mil, .gov, or usna.edu email address.</li> </ul>
Password:	
	Password must be 15 to 30 characters in length and contain the following:
	<ul> <li>Contains at least 2 uppercase characters: A,B,C, etc.</li> <li>Contains at least 2 lowercase characters: a,b,c, etc.</li> <li>Contains at least 2 numbers: 1,2,3,4,5,6,7,8,9,0</li> <li>Contains at least 2 special characters: ! @ # \$ % ^ &amp; * ()_ +   ~ - = \ ` { } []: "; ' &gt; ?,./</li> <li>Cannot contain any other user account information: name, phone, email, etc.</li> </ul>
Confirm Password:	
	Please re-enter your password for verification.
Role Type:	Contracting Officer
	COR COTR
	Prime Contractor
	Resource Manager
_	Subcontractor
F	If applicable, you may select more than one role. In particular, if you provide labor services as both Prime and Subcontractor, then select both Prime Contractor and Subcontractor, so that you will be able to log in and enter each of those bours perpendicular.
	court of chose hours appropriately.

All user roles require a valid e-mail address. However, certain user roles require distinct email addresses. The following describes the different e-mail designations per user role:

- For KO, COR/COTR, RM or RA roles, the user must have a .mil, .gov, or usna.edu email address.
- For Prime Contractor and Subcontractor user roles, the user must have a **non** .mil, .gov or usna.edu email address.
- Prime Contractors and Subcontractors who have .mil, .gov or usna.edu email addresses will need to use a **different valid email address** to register. The functionality in place here cannot be overridden.

Certain user roles will need to enter supplementary information in order to register:

- Prime Contractors and Subcontractors are required to enter their company's CAGE Code
- Requiring Activity users will need to enter their Requiring Activity UIC.
- Users registering for a Resource Manager role will need to enter their Command.

#### Note

• A CAGE Code is a Commercial and Government Entity (CAGE) Code, a five character code created by the Central Contractor Registry (CCR) and used by organizations applying for DoD and NASA awards.

If you are unaware of your CAGE code, you may search for it by clicking the blue here link as shown:

CONTRACTOR MANPOWER REPORTING
CMRA New User Registration
Because of the following information is required.         Cage Code:       Enter your 5 character Cage Code. A Cage Code is used to identify companies doing or wishing to do business with the federal government. You may search for your CAGE Code here         Cape el       Reset         Continue
Click 'here' to search for your CAGE code using BINCS.
DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY

#### Note

• CAGE codes are updated frequently, but if your valid CAGE Code is not in the CMRA Database, you will be prompted to check the code and proceed only if you're certain that it is the correct CAGE Code.

Select the **Continue** button to save your account data after completing all of the required information in the fields.

A message will be sent to your e-mail address after clicking the button that verifies your email address. In this email, a link will be displayed for you to click that opens the email verification screen in CMRA. Click the link in this email to verify that you have entered a valid email address.

No further action is required at this point.

Contractor Manpower Reporting Application User Guide

The Reset button will clear all fields on the screen.

The **Cancel** button will return the user to the Login screen.

#### Note

- Creating a CMRA account does **not** ensure immediate access to the system.
- A verification email will be sent to you after you register for a CMRA account. You must click on the link within the verification email to continue the activation process.
- After email verification, a System Administrator will manually review and process your new account. Approval can take up to 24-48 hours on business days.
- You will receive email notification once your new account is activated.

#### 4.3 Lost/Reset Password

oo 🧐 🎯 🎯	DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY	TING
	Login     Username:   Username is your email   address     Password:   User Role:   Prime Contractor     Submit     Lost / Reset Password   Register for your new CMRA Account	Heip Resources         Links open in a new window.         View User Manuals, Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ) and Clossary         Send an email
DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY		

The *Lost/Reset Password* link found on the Login screen may be selected if you have forgotten your password. Upon selection of this link, the system displays the "Forgot Password" screen.

You must enter your email address and click the **Submit** button (selection of the **Cancel** button will display the "Login" screen).

A "Forgot Password" email will be sent to your email address providing you with a link to initiate the process for resetting your password. You must click on the link in the email (or copy and paste the URL in a new browser window) in order to be directed to the password confirmation screen.

You must then enter and confirm a new password and then select the **Submit** button. The DON Regulation NTD 06-10 mandates that passwords must meet certain criteria in order to be considered valid (specified above).

#### 4.4 Expired Password

Passwords must be reset every 60 days according to DON NTD 06-10. If your password expires, follow the instructions on screen to update your password..

#### 4.5 Expired Account

Accounts expire after 60 days of inactivity. If you attempt to log in and receive the error message shown below, click the **Submit** button to have an email sent to you to initiate the process for reactivating the account.



You must click on the link in the email (or copy and paste the URL in a new browser window) in order to reauthenticate the account and be directed to the Login screen. If you are no longer the owner of the email account with which you registered, you may contact the Help Desk for additional assistance.

#### Note

• It is **not** necessary to contact the Help Desk unless you no longer have access to the email account you used when you registered for DON CMRA access.

# 5. CONTRACT SEARCH, CREATION, OR EDITING

This section provides instructions on searching, viewing, and entering contract data. Views and permissions will be based on your user role. All contract related terms used in the CMRA are defined in the Glossary (Appendix A).

#### 5.1 Contract Search

After logging in, the first screen you see will be the **Contract Search** tab that is shown in the image below.

You must search for a contract to determine whether a contract already exists within the application before a new contract can be created.

#### Note

• The more search criteria that is entered, the more narrow the search results.

Contract Search Reports	Welcome <b>Test U</b> You are logged in as a <b>Prime Contra</b>
Search by Contract Number	Help and Definitions
Fill out at least one of the search fields below to search for a contract. Contract Number: Enter at least 6 digits of the 13 digit DoD contract number. Do not include dashes or spaces. If there are multiple Order	These links open in a new windo View User Manuals, Frequent Asked Questions (FAQ) and Glossary
Additional Search Fields	, Questions and Answers
If the contract number is unknown, you may also search using any of these criteria Prime Contractor Company	Bulk Loader
Contracting Officer (KO) First Name: Enter at least 2 characters	<ul> <li>If you have multiple location try our Bulk Loader</li> </ul>
Contracting Officer (KO) Last Name: Enter at least 2 characters	
Search By Your Login	

There are three different ways to search for a contract. The three methods are described in more detail below:

• Search by Contract Number



- Enter the contract number in the Contract Number field to view a specific contract.
- You need to enter at least 6 characters of the 13-character contract number

#### • Search By Additional Search Fields

Contract Search Reports	Welcome <b>Test U</b> You are logged in as a <b>Prime Contrac</b>
Sourch by Contract Number	Help and Definitions
Fill out at least one of the search fields below to sear Contract Number: Enter at least 6 dig Do not include das Numbers on the C with that contract.	or a contract. of the 13 digit DoD contract number. or spaces. If there are multiple Order ict, there will be multiple rows associated
Additional Search Fields	Send an email
If the contract number is unknown, you may also sea Prime Contractor Company	Bulk Loader
Name: Enter at least 2 ch Contracting Officer (KO) First Name: Enter at least 2 ch	ters If you have multiple locations try our Bulk Loader
Contracting Officer (KO) Last	

- If the prime contract number is unknown, you can search by additional fields.
- Note that this search has limitations If the contact information has not been previously entered, the contract will NOT appear in the results.

• Search By Your Login

Contract Search Reports	Welcome <b>Test U</b> e You are logged in as a <b>Prime Contrac</b>
Search by Contract Number	Help and Definitions
ill out at least one of the search fields below to search for a contract. Contract Number: Enter at least 6 digits of the 13 digit DoD contract number. Do not include dashes or spaces. If there are multiple Order Numbers on the Contract, there will be multiple rows associated.	These links open in a new window View User Manuals, Frequenti Asked Questions (FAQ) and Glossary
Additional Search Fields	Questions and Answers  Send an email
f the contract number is unknown, you may also search using any of these criteria Prime Contractor Company	Bulk Loader
Contracting Officer (KO) First	<ul> <li>If you have multiple locations try our Bulk Loader</li> </ul>
Contracting Officer (KO) Last	
Search By Your Login	
lick Search below without entering any fields.	

- If you leave all search fields blank and click the **Search** button, the results will display all contracts that are associated with your username.
- "Associated" means any of the following:
  - the user is designated as a POC for an order on the contract
  - the user has claimed the order
  - the user has a designated relationship
    - "Designated relationship" means any of the following:
      - the user has entered data for the contract (e.g., locations)
      - $\circ$  the user's UIC or Command is a match for the UIC or Command on the contract

If results are found for the contract number you entered, CMRA will display the Contract Number, Contractor Company Name, and Contracting Officer's first and last name of the results based on the search criteria as shown in the image below.

	лоо 🧐 🖉		POWER REPO	RTING
Contract Searc	h Reports			Welcome <b>Test U</b> You are logged in as a <b>Prime Contrac</b>
<b>-</b> 1		disclosed below A sector of	a second as all and as and the	Help and Definitions
		uispidyed below. A contract	Lindy be displayed in	
more than one ro To view / edit the If the contract yo	w if multiple orders are a details of a contract: Se u are looking for does no	associated with it. elect the the Contract Numb it appear below, you may ac	per from below. dd a new contract.	<ul> <li>View User Manuals, Frequent Asked Questions (FAQ) and Glossary</li> </ul>
To view / edit the If the contract you Contract Number	w if multiple orders are a details of a contract: Se u are looking for does no Prime Contractor Company Name	elect the the Contract Numb at appear below, you may at Contracting Officer Last Name	dd a new contract.	<ul> <li>View User Manuals, Frequent Asked Questions (FAQ) and Glossary</li> <li>Questions and Answers</li> </ul>
To view / edit the If the contract yo Contract Number	w if multiple orders are a details of a contract: Se u are looking for does no Prime Contractor Company Name	associated with it. elect the the Contract Numb at appear below, you may ac Contracting Officer Last Name User	ber from below. dd a new contract. Contracting Officer First Name Test	View User Manuals, Frequent Asked Questions (FAQ) and Glossary     Questions and Answers     Send an email
To view / edit the If the contract yo Contract Number 111111-11-11111	w if multiple orders are a details of a contract: Se u are looking for does no Prime Contractor Company Name ABC Contracting	associated with it. elect the the Contract Numb it appear below, you may ac Contracting Officer Last Name User User	ber from below. dd a new contract. Contracting Officer First Name Test Test	View User Manuals, Frequent Asked Questions (FAQ) and Glossary     Questions and Answers     Send an email     Bulk Loader

If the particular contract you searched for is found, you may click on the *Contract Number* link in the "Contract Number" column. The "Contract Details" screen will display.

For guidance on completing the "Contract Details" screen, please see the *Edit Contract* section and the *Claim Order* section (*- for COR/COTRs only*).

#### Note

- If a contract is found for the contract number you entered and it has a previous year's fiscal year data entered, you may **not** add a new contract for the current fiscal year. Attempting to recreate the contract will result in an error.
- Data for the current fiscal year shall be added by adding a new order. For guidance on adding new orders, please see the section on *Contract and Order Details*.
- Data that appears for previous fiscal years is **not** to be deleted.

#### 5.2 Contract Creation

If the contract you are searching for is not currently in the database, the CMRA will prompt you with a message that says, "**Your search did not return any results. Please click here to create a contract**." Click on the referenced link to create a new contract entry.

0	DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY	Home Help & References Edit Profile Logou
Contract Search Report		Welcome <b>Test Use</b> You are logged in as a <b>Prime Contracto</b>
Your search did not return any	results. Please click here to create a contract.	Help and Definitions
Search by Contract Number Fill out at least one of the search for Contract Number	These links open in a new window View User Manuals, Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ) and Glossary	
- "Ndikiaan" Germah Sialda	Numbers on the Contract, there will be multiple rows associate with that contract.	ed , Questions and Answers

You will be given the option of creating a new contract entry in the CMRA after clicking the link referenced in the directions above.

The page will be displayed as shown below.

Enter the **Contract Number** and **Contract Fiscal Year** of the new contract you want to store in the CMRA. Click **Save Contract** after entering the required contract information.

ontract Search Reports		Welcome <b>Contractor</b> You are logged in as a <b>Prime</b>
ate Contract		
Contract Number:		
Contract Fiscal Year:	2013 -	
me Contractors or Contracting Officers ime Contractors are not responsible for DAA Elements	are responsible for en entering NDAA data.	tering NDAA data after Prime Contractors have entered the contra
DAA Elements Form of Contract Action	are responsible for en entering NDAA data. Select One	tering NDAA data after Prime Contractors have entered the contra Prime Contractors are not
DAA Elements Form of Contract Action Contract Type	are responsible for en entering NDAA data. Select One Select One	Prime Contractors are not responsible for completing the NDAA
DAA Elements Form of Contract Action Contract Type Performance-Based Services Acquisition	are responsible for en entering NDAA data. Select One Select One	Prime Contractors are not responsible for completing the NDAA Elements section when creating a
DAA Elements Form of Contract Action Contract Type Performance-Based Services Acquisition Non-DOD Purchasing Agency	are responsible for en entering NDAA data. Select One Select One	Prime Contractors are not responsible for completing the NDAA Elements section when creating a contract.
DAA Elements Form of Contract Action Contract Type Performance-Based Services Acquisition Non-DOD Purchasing Agency Competed Action	are responsible for en entering NDAA data. Select One No • Select One	Prime Contractors are not responsible for completing the NDAA Elements section when creating a contract.
DAA Elements Form of Contract Action Contract Type Performance-Based Services Acquisition Non-DOD Purchasing Agency Competed Action If Competed, Number of Offerors	are responsible for en entering NDAA data. Select One Select One No Select One Select One O	Prime Contractors are not responsible for completing the NDAA Elements section when creating a contract.

#### Note

• COR/COTRs (or KOs in the event that there is no COR/COTR assigned) are responsible for entering information and data into the *NDAA Elements* fields displayed below the Contract Number and Contract Fiscal Year. Prime Contractors are not responsible for this data.

Click Save Contract after entering all of the necessary information in the required data fields.

#### 5.3 Edit Contract Data

There are two tabs within the "Contract Search" tab. The "Contract" tab will display the Contract Number, Contract Fiscal Year, and the NDAA Elements for the contract selected.

To edit a contract, click the **Edit Contract** button at the bottom of the Contract tab. After completing the revisions to the contract, click the **Save Contract** button to save the updated information. Clicking the **Back to Search** button will return the user to the "Search Results" screen and any changes on the screen will not be saved.

contract Search Reports			Welcome Test You are logged in as a Prime Contra
tract Search > Contract: M67854-02-A-90	13		
Contract Orders			
Contract Number:	M67854-02-A-9013		
Contract Fiscal Year:	2012		
Form of Contract Action	Firm Fixed Price		
DAA Elements			
Form of Contract Action		1	
Contract Type	Firm Fixed Price		
Performance-Based Services Acquisition	No		
Performance-Based Services Acquisition Non-DOD Purchasing Agency	No		
Performance-Based Services Acquisition Non-DOD Purchasing Agency Competed Action	No Full And Open Competition		
Performance-Based Services Acquisition Non-DOD Purchasing Agency Competed Action If Competed, Number of Offerors	No Full And Open Competition 2		
Performance-Based Services Acquisition           Non-DOD Purchasing Agency           Competed Action           If Competed, Number of Offerors           Small Business	No Full And Open Competition 2 No		
Performance-Based Services Acquisition           Non-DOD Purchasing Agency           Competed Action           If Competed, Number of Offerors           Small Business           Small Disadvantaged Business	No Full And Open Competition 2 No No		
Performance-Based Services Acquisition Non-DOD Purchasing Agency Competed Action If Competed, Number of Offerors Small Business Small Disadvantaged Business Woman-Owned Small Business	No Full And Open Competition 2 No No No		
Performance-Based Services Acquisition         Non-DOD Purchasing Agency         Competed Action         If Competed, Number of Offerors         Small Business         Small Disadvantaged Business         Woman-Owned Small Business         DoD Administering Component	No Full And Open Competition 2 No No Mo M67854: COMMANDER		
Performance-Based Services Acquisition Non-DOD Purchasing Agency Competed Action If Competed, Number of Offerors Small Disadvantaged Business Woman-Owned Small Business DoD Administering Component Contracting Organization	No Full And Open Competition 2 No No Mo7854: COMMANDER		

#### Note

• Only Prime Contractors, COR/COTRs, Resource Managers, and Requiring Activity Managers may edit contract data.

# 6. ORDER SEARCH, CREATION, OR EDITING

#### 6.1 Order Search

All orders for a specific contract will be displayed in the "Existing Orders" table on the **Orders** tab. To edit or view order information of one of the displayed existing orders, click on the **Orders** tab and select one of the blue hyperlinked Order Numbers. If the order is not displayed it needs to be added.

Contract	t Search	Rep	orts		We You are logged in as a P	elcome <b>Test l</b> rime Contra
ract Searc	ch > Con	tract: 4567	789-12-3-4567			
Contract	Orders					
open a	n Order	Number.	click the blue Order Number	link. Note that Order Number	er refers to Task Order and De	liverv
umbor of		indifficer,	Control blue blue blue blue			livery
THE O	r rne Con	ntract. For	r Contracts without an Order i	Numper, "UUUU" appears.		
<b>filter</b> t	r the Con he result	tract. For	mole to search for a specific	Order Number) enter sear	ch text in a text box in a colum	nn header
<b>filter</b> t	he result lick on th	itract. For is (for exa ne column	ample, to search for a specific header label.	order Number), enter sear	ch text in a text box in a colur	nn header.
<b>filter</b> to <b>sort</b> , cl	he result lick on th	itract. For s (for exa ne column	ample, to search for a specific header label.	order Number), enter sear	ch text in a text box in a colur	nn header.
<b>filter</b> to <b>sort</b> , cl	he result lick on th	itract. For s (for exa ne column	ample, to search for a specific header label.	oumber, "0000" appears. Corder Number), enter sear	ch text in a text box in a colur	nn header.
cisting (	he result lick on th Orders Fiscal	Account	Prime Contractor	Contracting Officer	ch text in a text box in a colur	nn header.
cisting ( rder lumber	he result lick on th Orders Fiscal Year	Account Related	Prime Contractor Company Name	Contracting Officer	ch text in a text box in a colur Contracting Officer First Name	mn header.
cisting ( lumber	Fiscal	Account	Prime Contractor Company Name	Contracting Officer	ch text in a text box in a colur Contracting Officer First Name	nn header.
cisting ( brder lumber	Provide a contraction of the result lick on the orders of the order of	Account Related	Prime Contractor     Company Name     Test Manufacturing Company	Contracting Officer	ch text in a text box in a colur Contracting Officer First Name	nn header.
cisting ( order lumber 111 323	Provide a constraint of the constraint of the result lick on the constraint of the c	Account Related	Contracts without an Order I     ample, to search for a specific     header label.      Prime Contractor     Company Name     Test Manufacturing Company     Pam's Testing Ltd	Contracting Officer	ch text in a text box in a colur Contracting Officer First Name	nn header.

#### Note

- The blank fields under each column heading are used to filter the results.
- These filters will be very helpful for contracts that have many orders spanning many fiscal years.
- If you know the exact order number, you can enter it in the box below "Order Number" to filter for it.
- If you want to filter for all orders for a particular Fiscal Year, enter that year in the box below "Fiscal Year."
- The same can be done for Prime Contractor or Contracting Officer name.
  - Important the name fields are case-sensitive and need to be exact. (i.e., If you filter for "Cathy Jones" in the KO field, results for "Catherine Jones" will not be displayed. You will get better results from entering only "Jones."
- The only way to add a new order is to click on the "Add New Order" at the bottom of the page.
- Subcontractors do not have permission to use the Add New Order button. Subcontractors must contact the Prime Contractor if the order does not exist in the system and the Prime Contractor must add the order.

There are four sections of order information to enter, review, or edit, as shown in the following tabs:

• Order Data (Order Details)

ion 🧐 🧐 🎯	departin NTRACTOR M.
Contract Search Reports Contract Search > Contract: 123789-12-3-4 Order Data Contact Data Location Order Details	1567 > Data Fund Cite
Contract Number:	123789-12-3-4567
*Fiscal Year:	<b>2014</b> FY that the contract work
*Order Number:	0001

• Contact Data

со 🧐 🧐 🌀	DEPAR NTRACTOR N
Contract Search Reports	
Contract Search > Contract: 123789-12-3- Order Data Contact Data Locatio	4567 > Order: 0001
Contracting Officer (KO)	11 1
First Name:	
Last Name:	
Phone Number:	
Email Address:	

Location Data

			DEPART
(	Contract	Search Report	IS .
Cont	ract Sear	ch > Contract: 12378	9-12-3-4567 > Order: 0001
(	Order Dat	a Contact Data	Location Data Fund Cite
To pe	edit or ermission	delete an existing en s allow.	try, click the Edit (🖉) or Delete
Lo	cation In	formation	
	FSC	Company	City or Installation of Service
	D302	AZ Testing Company	Tucson

• Fund Cite Data – Contractors and Subcontractors are **not** responsible for entering Fund Cite Data



After selecting an existing order number, the "Order Data" tab displays the following order information:

Required Field	Explanation of Required Field
Fiscal Year	The fiscal year is the accounting period of the federal government. It begins on October 1 and ends on September 30 of the next calendar year. Each fiscal year is identified by the calendar year in which it ends and commonly is referred to as "FY."
Order Number	The Order Number refers to the Task Order and/or Delivery Number of the Contract. For contracts without an Order Number, use "0000" as default or another number that is meaningful to all parties entering and reviewing data for that order.
Requiring Activity Unit Identification Code	The Unit Identification Code (UIC) of the Requiring Activity (RA) refers to the UIC of the Requiring Activity that would be performing the mission if not for the contractor. This is not necessarily the Contracting Office, Contracting Administrative Office, or Funding Source. <u>If you do NOT know which UIC</u> to select, contact the COR/COTR for the contract/order in question. The <u>DON CMRA Help Desk is unable to assist in determining which is the</u> correct UIC. Contact the DON CMRA Help Desk only if the UIC is not available in the drop down menu for selection.
Command	Command of the Requiring Activity that would be performing the mission if not for the contractor. This field will auto-populate based on the UIC that is selected.
Contractor Company	The name of the prime contractor for the order.
Direct Non-labor Cost	Supply costs plus Other Direct Costs (ODCs). ODCs are charged directly to the Government and are not included in proposed material costs, direct labor, indirect costs or any other category of cost. The Direct Non-labor Cost should be reported as <u>unburdened</u> cost.
Total Invoiced Amount	The total dollar amount invoiced during the fiscal year, at the Delivery Order and/or Task Order level. The Total Invoiced Amount will include Direct Non- Labor Cost, Prime Contractor Labor Cost, Subcontractor Labor Cost and will be the fully-burdened amount. It represents the entire amount invoiced for the order for the particular fiscal year. <b>Important: If the labor is performed across fiscal years, include in the</b>

Total Invoiced Amount any amount that WILL BE invoiced for work<br/>performed in the current (reportable) fiscal year.Example: Work is performed in September 2014 (during FY14) and<br/>the invoice isn't sent to the Government until October 2014 (during<br/>FY15). Include the amount invoiced in October 2014 in Total<br/>Invoiced Amount because it is for work that was done in FY14.

The image below shows completed Order Details on the "Order Data" tab.

on 🧐 🎯 🎯	Home Help & References Edit Profile Logout DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY NTRACTOR MANPOWER REPORTING
Contract Search Reports	Welcome Contractor Contractor You are logged in as a Prime Contractor
Order Data Contact Data Location	Data Fund Cite
Order Details	
Contract Number:	123789-12-3-4567
*Fiscal Year:	2014 FY that the contract work was performed.
*Order Number:	0001
*Requiring Activity UIC:	N00173 - NAVAL RESEARCH LABORATORY
Command:	Chief of Naval Research Command of the Requiring Activity selected above.
Prime Contractor Company:	Testing International
*Direct Non-Labor Cost:	<b>\$44,444</b> Supply costs plus Other Direct Costs (ODCs). ODCs are charged directly to the Government and are not included in proposed material costs, direct labor, indirect costs or any other category of cost.
*Total Invoiced Amount:	\$333,333 The total dollar amount invoiced during the fiscal year, at the Delivery Order and/or Task Order level. This is the responsibility of the Prime Contractor.
	Release Claim Edit
DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY	

#### Note

• The completed Order Data fields are expected to be reviewed by the COR/COTR in charge of overseeing the order. The COR/COTR should also edit any incorrect data if necessary.

#### 6.2 Order Creation

If the Order Number for the **current fiscal year** does not exist, then it needs to be added using the "Add New Order" button.

The "Add New Order" button is only enabled for users who have rights to add orders on a particular contract.

			CONTRACTOR M	MENT OF THE NAVY	Home Help & References Edi	t Profile   Logo
Contrac	t Search ch > Con	n Repo atract: 4567	orts 89-12-3-4567		Welc You are logged in as a <b>Pri</b>	ome <b>Test Us</b> m <b>e Contract</b>
Number o To filter t To sort, c Existing	f the Cor he result lick on th	ntract. For is (for example column	Contracts without an Order Num mple, to search for a specific Ord header label.	iber, "0000" appears. ler Number), enter search te	ext in a text box in a column	n header.
Order	Fiscal	Account	Prime Contractor	Contracting Officer	Contracting Officer	
Order Number	Fiscal Year	Account Related	Prime Contractor Company Name	Contracting Officer Last Name	Contracting Officer First Name	
Order Number	Fiscal Year 2014	Account Related	Prime Contractor Company Name	Contracting Officer Last Name	Contracting Officer First Name	Delete
Order Number 1111 2323	<b>Fiscal</b> <b>Year</b> 2014 2014	Account Related	Prime Contractor Company Name Subcontractors do NO	Contracting Officer Last Name	Contracting Officer First Name	Delete Delete

The image below shows the Order Details page that displays after the Add New Order button is clicked.

ion 🧐 🎯 🌀	DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY VTRACTOR MANPOWER REPORTING
Contract Search Reports	Welcome <b>Test User</b> You are logged in as a <b>Prime Contractor</b>
Contract Search > Contract: N14741-55-D-8	989>
Order Details	
Contract Number:	N14741-55-D-8989
*Fiscal Year:	2014       FY that the contract work was performed.
*Order Number:	
*Requiring Activity UIC:	Search For UIC To enter/update the UIC Field, use the Search UIC tool by clicking the search button above. Contact the COR/COTR, if uncertain of the RA UIC or its Command.
Command:	Command of the Requiring Activity selected above.
*Prime Contractor Company:	
*Direct Non-Labor Cost:	Supply costs plus Other Direct Costs (ODCs). ODCs are charged directly to the Government and are not included in proposed material costs, direct labor, indirect costs or any other category of cost.
*Total Invoiced Amount:	The total dollar amount invoiced during the fiscal year, at the Delivery Order and/or Task Order level. This is the responsibility of the Prime Contractor.
	Create Order
DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY	

Contractor Manpower Reporting Application User Guide

Enter all required data for the order. You may refer to the table in section 6.1 for the explanations of the required fields.

The Unit Identification Code (UIC) of the Requiring Activity is not entered in a text box. The UIC needs to be selected from the search feature.

To search for and select a Requiring Activity UIC:

- 1. Click the Search for UIC button on the Order Details screen.
- 2. If you know the UIC of the Requiring Activity:
  - a. Enter the RA's UIC in the "UIC" field and leave the other search criteria blank. Click Search for UIC.

		CLASSIFIED/F	OR OFFICIAL USE ONLY		
					: Profile Logout
Contra		LUNTRAC			e Test User Contractor
Contract Sea	Search UIC				
Order D	Search using one or more fit Entering multiple fields and if so, enter all or part of one When searching using the U.	elds below, then sele complete entries ma field and then refine IC field, enter all or p	ect a UIC to complete this step. y unnecessarily restrict results; the search by adding more. part of the known UIC/DoDAAC(e	g. "N48142" or "48142").	
	Command: Select One	\$	Country: Select One	\$	
	Description		State: Select One	\$	
	UIC: N00178		City		
		Cancel Searc	Zin Code:		
					act the
	Command: Comm	nand of the Requirin	g Activity selected above.		

b. When the Search Results table is displayed, verify that the UIC is correct and select it by clicking the blue hyperlinked UIC.

	atte.			
0	🥹 😢 C(	departme ONTRACTOR MA	NT OF THE NAVY	G <sub>e Test U</sub>
Sea	arch UIC			Contrac
Sea Ente if so Whe	rch using one or more field ering multiple fields and con- p, enter all or part of one fie en searching using the UIC	s below, then select a UIC to comp mplete entries may unnecessarily ald and then refine the search by a field, enter all or part of the known	olete this step. restrict results; dding more. n UIC/DoDAAC(eg. "N48142" or "48142").	
Command	Select One	Country:	Select One \$	
Description		State:	Select One \$	
UIC	N00178	City		
		Zip Code:		
		Cancel Search For UIC		act the
Search Re	sults:			
Search Ro UIC	Description	Command	State or Country	

- 3. If you do not know the exact UIC of the Requiring Activity, but know some of its information, you may use the other search fields:
  - a. Select one or more of the fields and enter the information. Too much information will unnecessarily limit results. In the example below, the search is for all UICs in the Naval Sea Systems Command located in the state of Virginia.

	UNCLASSIFIED/FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY	
	DEPARIMENT OF THE NAVY	
Contra		e Test User Contractor
Contract Sea	Search UIC	
	Search using one or more fields below, then select a UIC to complete this step.	
Order D	Entering multiple fields and complete entries may unnecessarily restrict results; if so, enter all or part of one field and then refine the search by adding more.	
	When searching using the UIC field, enter all or part of the known UIC/DoDAAC(eg. "N48142" or "48142").	
	Command: Naval Sea Systems Cmd 🗘 Country: Select One 🗘	
	Description State: Virginia 🗘	
	UIC: City	
	Zip Code:	
	Cancel Search For UIC	
		act the
	Command:	
	Command of the Requiring Activity selected above.	

- b. Use the numbers to page through the results if necessary. In the example below, there are more than 10 pages of results for this search.
- c. Browse the Search Results table and select the correct UIC by clicking on the blue hyperlinked UIC.

0	Contr	DEPARTMENT OF THE I	NAVY WER REPORTIN	G e Test U
Se	arch UIC			
Se En if s W	arch using one or more fields below, the tering multiple fields and complete entr io, enter all or part of one field and ther nen searching using the UIC field, enter d: Naval Sea Systems Cmd	en select a UIC to complete this ste les may unnecessarily restrict resu refine the search by adding more. all or part of the known UIC/DoDA Country: Select One	ep. Ilts; AC(eg. "N48142" or "48142").	
Descriptio	in	State: Virginia	\$	
UI	C:	City		
		Zip Code:	regulte	
Search F	Cancel Lesults:	Zip Code:	results.	act the
Search F	Cancel tesults:	Zip Code: Search For UIC	results.	act the
Search F UIC N00178	Cancel tesuits: Description NSWC DAHLGREN	Zip Code: Search For UIC	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 State or Country Virginia	
Search F UIC N00178	Cancel Cesults: Description NSWC DAHLGREN NORFOLK NAVAL SHIPYARD	Zip Code: Search For UIC Command Naval Sea Systems Cmd Naval Sea Systems Cmd	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 State or Country Virginia Virginia	
Search F UIC N00178	Cancel Cession	Zip Code: Search For UIC Command Naval Sea Systems Cmd Naval Sea Systems Cmd Naval Sea Systems Cmd	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10       State or Country       Virginia       Virginia       Virginia	act the
Search F UIC N00178 100181 007185 N12628	Cancel Cesults:	Zip Code: Search For UIC Command Naval Sea Systems Cmd Naval Sea Systems Cmd Naval Sea Systems Cmd Naval Sea Systems Cmd	I 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10       State or Country       Virginia       Virginia       Virginia       Virginia	are not
Search F UIC N00178 N0181 107185 N12628 N13391	Cancel Cancel Concel Co	Zip Code: Search For UIC Command Naval Sea Systems Cmd Naval Sea Systems Cmd	I 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10       State or Country       Virginia       Virginia       Virginia       Virginia       Virginia	are not
Search F UIC N00178 N0181 N07185 N12628 N13391 N17733	Cancel Ca	Zip Code: Search For UIC Search For UIC Command Naval Sea Systems Cmd	I 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 State or Country Virginia Virginia Virginia Virginia Virginia Virginia	are not
Search F UIC N00178 N07185 N12628 N1391 N17733 N20008	Cancel Cancel Concel Co	Zip Code: Search For UIC Search For UIC Command Naval Sea Systems Cmd	Itempts peges       results.       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10       State or Country       Virginia       Virginia       Virginia       Virginia       Virginia       Virginia       Virginia       Virginia       Virginia	are not
Search F UIC N00178 N0185 N12628 N13391 N13391 N13391 N20008 N20034	Cancel Ca	Zip Code: Search For UIC Search For UIC Naval Sea Systems Cmd Naval Sea Systems Cmd	Itempte pegee       results.       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10       State or Country       Virginia	are not evel. This
Search F UIC N00178 N07185 N12628 N1391 N17733 N20008 N20034 N20034	Cancel Ca	Zip Code: Search For UIC Search For UIC Naval Sea Systems Cmd Naval Sea Systems Cmd	Itempts peges       results.       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10       State or Country       Virginia       Virginia	act the are not avel. This <b>e Orde</b>

4. Once you select the UIC by clicking on the blue link, the **UIC** will automatically be displayed on the Order Details page with the corresponding **Command** as shown in the image below.

	UNCLASSIFIED/FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY
	Home Help & References   Edit Profile   Logo DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY
100 🧐 🧐 🥘	NTRACTOR MANPOWER REPORTING
Contract Search Reports	Welcome <b>Test Us</b> You are logged in as a <b>Prime Contract</b>
ontract Search > Contract: N14741-55-D-8	989 >
Order Details	
Contract Number:	N14741-55-D-8989
*Fiscal Year:	(2014 ♥) FY that the contract work was performed.
*Order Number:	
*Requiring Activity UIC:	N00178 - NSWC DAHLGREN
	Search for orc To enter/update the UIC Field, use the Search UIC tool by clicking the search button above. Contact the COR/COTR, if uncertain of the RA UIC or its Command.

- 5. Enter the information for the remaining fields Prime Contractor Company, Direct Non-labor Cost, and Total Invoiced Amount.
- 6. Click the Create Order button.
- 7. If there are any errors or required data fields missing, red error messages will be displayed.
- 8. Correct the errors if there are any.
- 9. When the order is created successfully, the new order is displayed in the "Existing Orders" table on the **Orders** tab.

					DEPAF	RTMENT OF THE NAVY					
			) 😢	CONTRAC		MANPOWF		PORTING			
	<u> </u>	ans d		001111//(0				onnina			
Γ	Contrac	t Search	Repo	orts				You are lo	ogged in a	Welcom is a <b>Prime</b>	e Test User Contractor
Со	ntract Searc	:h > Con	tract: N147	41-55-D-8989							
	Contract	Orders									
	Number of To filter t	f the Con he result	tract. For s (for example	Contracts without a mple, to search for a	n Order Nu a specific C	nk. Note that Orde umber, "0000" app Order Number), en	bears. hter search	text in a text b	ox in a d	column h	neader.
	Number of To filter t To sort, c	f the Con he result lick on th	tract. For s (for example column	Contracts without a mple, to search for a header label.	a specific C	nk. Note that Orde umber, "0000" app Order Number), en	nter search	text in a text b	ox in a o	column h	neader.
	Number of To filter t To sort, c Existing ( Order Number	f the Con he result lick on th Orders Fiscal Year	Account Related	Contracts without a nple, to search for a header label. Prime Contractor Company Name	an Order Nu a specific C	Ak. Note that Orde umber, "0000" app Order Number), en Contracting Office Last Name	er	Contracting ( First Name	ox in a o	column h	neader.
	Number of To filter t To sort, c Existing ( Order Number	f the Con he result lick on th Orders Fiscal Year	Account Related	Contracts without a nple, to search for a header label. Prime Contractor Company Name	a specific C	nk. Note that Orde umber, "0000" app order Number), en Contracting Office Last Name	er	Contracting ( First Name	ox in a o	column h	ry neader.
	To filter to To filter to To sort, c Existing ( Order Number	f the Con he result lick on th Orders Fiscal Year	Account Related	Contracts without a nple, to search for a header label. Prime Contractor Company Name	in Order Nu a specific C	nk. Note that Orde umber, "0000" app Order Number), en Contracting Office Last Name	er	Contracting C	ox in a o	column F	neader.
	To filter to To filter to To sort, c Existing ( Order Number	Fiscal Year 2014	Account Related	Contracts without a nple, to search for a header label. Prime Contractor Company Name	in Order Nu a specific O	nk. Note that Orde umber, "0000" app Order Number), en Contracting Offic Last Name	ears. Iter search i	Contracting ( First Name	ox in a d	Add Nev	peader. Delete
	To filter t To filter t To sort, c Existing ( Order Number	Torders f the Control of the cesult lick on the Drders Fiscal Year	Account Related	Contracts without a nple, to search for a header label. Prime Contractor Company Name ABC Prime	a specific C	nk. Note that Orde umber, "0000" app Order Number), en Contracting Offic Last Name	er	Contracting ( First Name	ox in a o	Add Nev	Delete

#### 6.3 Order Editing

Order Details can be edited on the Order Data tab.

ion 🧐 🎯 🎯	DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY
Contract Search Reports	Welcome <b>Test User</b> You are logged in as a <b>Prime Contractor</b>
Contract Search > Contract: N14741-55-D-8 Order Data Contact Data Location Order Details	989 > Data Fund Cite
Contract Number:	N14741-55-D-8989

Orders can be edited by users who have the correct role or ownership rights to the order. In order to protect proprietary data, you may only edit orders if you have claimed the order as a COR/COTR, are the Prime Contractor owner of the order, or a RA/RM with the UIC/Command that correspond to the order.

More detailed information is available in the role-specific user guides.

In general, orders can be viewed/edited by clicking on the blue hyperlinked **Order Number** in the "Existing Orders" table.

The image below shows an example of an order that can be edited by the user who is logged in. The **Edit** button is enabled and the user can click on it to edit the order details.

Contract Search Reports	Welcome <b>Test</b> You are logged in as a <b>Prime Contr</b> a
ract Search > Contract: N14741-55-D-8 Order Data Contact Data Location	989 > Data Fund Cite
rder Details	
Contract Number:	N14741-55-D-8989
*Fiscal Year:	2014 FY that the contract work was performed.
*Order Number:	1001
*Requiring Activity UIC:	N00178 - NSWC DAHLGREN
Command:	Naval Sea Systems Cmd Command of the Requiring Activity selected above.
*Prime Contractor Company:	ABC Prime
*Direct Non-Labor Cost:	\$12,885 Supply costs plus Other Direct Costs (ODCs). ODCs are charged directly to the Government and are not included in proposed material costs, direct labor, indirect costs or any other category of cost.
*Total Invoiced Amount:	\$2,255,500 The total dollar amount invoiced during the fiscal year, at the Delivery Order and/or Task Order level. The in the memory billity of the Demo Contractor for the fiscal year.

#### Note

• The **Edit** button is used to edit the Order Details only. It is **not** used to find the screen for entering manpower hours. Manpower hours are entered on the **Location Data** tab.

#### 6.4 Contact Data:

Contact information can be edited on the Contact Data tab.

DEPARTMENT OF THE CONTRACTOR MANPO	Home   Help & References   Edit Profile   Logout NAVY WER REPORTING
Contract Search Reports	Welcome <b>Test User</b> You are logged in as a <b>Prime Contractor</b>
Contract Search > Contract: N14741-55-D-8989 > Order: 1001	
Contracting Officer (KO)	

To update contact data for an order, select the **Contact Data** tab. The **Contact Data** tab displays the Contact Information for the **Contracting Officer**, **Prime Contractor**, and **COR/COTR** (if the data exists in the system already). To edit existing contact data, click on the contact link in the table.

To add new contact data, enter the appropriate contact information into the contact data fields and click on the **Save** button for the appropriate Contact (**Save Contracting Officer**, **Save Prime Contractor**, or **Save COR/COTR**).

#### 6.5 Location Data:

The Location Data tab is where Contractor Manpower hours are reported.

	DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY	Home Help & References Edit Profile Logout
	CONTRACTOR MANPOWER	REPORTING
Contract Search Report	ts -	Welcome <b>Test User</b> You are logged in as a <b>Prime Contractor</b>
Contract Search > Contract: N1474	1-55-D-8989 > Order: 1001	
Order Data Contact Data	Location Data Fund Cite	
To edit or delete an existing e permissions allow.	ntry, click the Edit ( $ oldsymbol{(2)}$ or Delete ( $\widehat{\slashed{k}}$ ) icon, respect	ively, in the table, which are present when
Location Information		

#### Notes

- The only Prime or Subcontractor who can view the **Total Invoiced Amount, Direct Non-labor Dollars, Direct Labor Dollars, and Direct Labor Hours** is the user who entered the original data or has been granted the right to claim the order. All other data is public information. If dollar amounts have been entered, but you do not have the rights to see the proprietary data, you'll see "Entered" instead of a dollar amount.
- A COR/COTR may only view the **Total Invoiced Amount, Direct Non-labor Dollars, Direct Labor Dollars, and Direct Labor Hours** if he or she enters the data or claims the order. To view the data for a record you did not enter, and have a requirement to do so, select the **Claim Order** button on the **Order Data** tab....

All locations for a specific order will be displayed in the Location Information table on the Location **Data** tab. To navigate to the Location **Data** tab, search for and select the correct contract, then select the appropriate order from the **Orders** tab. To view the complete details of a location that is displayed, click the **Edit** icon on the left side of the row. The image below shows the view of the Location Data tab.

DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY							
Contract Search Reports	Welcome Test User Contract Search Reports You are logged in as a Prime Contractor						
Contract Search > Contract: N14741-55-D-8989> Order Order Data Contact Data Location Data Fun To edit or delete an existing entry, click the Edit ( permissions allow.	ontract Search > Contract: N14741-55-D-8989>       Order: 1001         Order Data       Contact Data       Location Data         Fund Cite       Fund Cite         To edit or delete an existing entry, click the Edit (2) or Delete (3) icon, respectively, in the table, which are present when permissions allow.						
Location Information	onvice State / Zin or Country	Direct Labor Hours	Direct Labor Dollars				
C118 ABC Prime Phoenix	Arizona / 85004	5,000	\$12,500				
🕜 🔂 H112 ABC Prime Phoenix	Arizona / 85004	125	\$2,663				
If you have multiple locations to enter, try the BL Click the edit icon next to the location to view or edit the information for that location.	If you have multiple locations to enter, try the Bulk Loader.         Click the edit icon next to the location to view or edit the information for that location.         form another function (FSC) at this location?         Vest       No						

If no locations exist in the system for this order for the current fiscal year, the table will display the message "No Records Found." If <u>the Prime Contractor has already entered the Order Data</u>, you can click on the **Add New Location** button to add location information. Subcontractors can only add location information **after** the Prime Contractor has entered the order information. The image below shows the fields that require information to be completed when adding a new location.

o ed	Search > Contrac				You are log	Welcome Test gged in as a Prime Contra
orde oed	r Data Contact	t: N14741-55-D-8	989 > Order: 1001			
o ed erm		Data Location	Data Fund Cite			
	it or delete an ex issions allow.	cisting entry, clic	k the Edit (🕜) or D	Delete (🐼) icon, respectiv	ely, in the table, which	h are present when
cati	on Information			I	1	
	FSC Company	City or Instal	lation of Service	State/Zip or Country	Direct Labor Hours	Direct Labor Dollar
3 🕞	C118 ABC Prime	Phoenix		Arizona / 85004	5,000	\$12,500
3 🔂	H112 ABC Prime	Phoenix		Arizona / 85004	125	\$2,663
	Federal S	ervice Code(FSC):	Search For FSC			Add New Locatio
	Federal S	ervice Code(FSC):	Search For FSC To enter/update th search button abov Code describing servi	e FSC Field, use the Search e. ice or product provided to the	for Federal Service Code	e tool by clicking the
	Federal S City or Inst	ervice Code(FSC): allation of Service:	Search For FSC To enter/update this search button abov Code describing servi	e FSC Field, use the Search e. ice or product provided to the ervice is performed.	for Federal Service Code Department of the Navy (D	e tool by clicking th :
	Federal S City or Inst	ervice Code(FSC): allation of Service: State:	Search For FSC To enter/update the search button abov Code describing servi Location where the se Select One Outside of US, leave	e FSC Field, use the Search e. ice or product provided to the ervice is performed. es "Select One"	for Federal Service Code Department of the Navy (D	add New Location
	Federal S City or Inst	ervice Code(FSC): allation of Service: State: Zip Code:	Search For FSC To enter/update th search button abov Code describing servi Location where the su Select One Outside of US, leave Outside of US, not re	e FSC Field, use the Search e. ice or product provided to the ervice is performed.	for Federal Service Code	add New Location
	Federal S City or Inst	allation of Service: State: Zip Code: Country:	Search For FSC To enter/update the search button abov Code describing servi Location where the se Select One Outside of US, leave Outside of US, not re Select One Location where the se	e FSC Field, use the Search e. ice or product provided to the ervice is performed. e as "Select One" quired ervice is performed.	for Federal Service Code Department of the Navy (D	add New Location

The table below provides guidance to assist with accurately entering the location data in the required fields.

Required Field	Explanation of Required Field
	The Federal Service Code (FSC) is not normally stated in the contract. It is
	up to the discretion of the person entering CMRA data to select the FSC
	that most closely matches the services being provided.
	To enter the Federal Service Code (FSC), click the Search for FSC button
	to begin the search.
	• If you know the FSC, enter it in the Code field and click the
	Search for FSC button.
	• The code will be displayed in the results table.
	• Click the blue hyperlinked code on the left to populate the
Fadaral Sarvica Coda	field in the location data table on the previous screen.
rederal service Code	• If you do not know the FSC, search by category by choosing one
	of the items in the Service Category drop down menu and click
	the Search for FSC button.
	• The list of FSC in that category will be displayed in the
	results table.
	<ul> <li>Decide which description most closely matches the work</li> </ul>
	being performed and click the corresponding blue
	hyperlinked code on the left to populate the field in the
	location data table.
	In the Call FOC second second second by second seco
C'to an Landa Batian an	Images of the FSC search screens can be seen below this table.
City or installation or Some contract	City or installation where the service is performed.
Service	State where the convice is performed
State Zin Codo	State where the service is performed.
	Country where the convice is performed.
	Ludicate whether your year role is a Drime or Subcontractor
	indicate whether your user fole is a Finne of Subcontractor.
Contractor Type	Note: This field is only displayed when a System Administrator, RA, RM
	or COR/COTR enters or edits location information
	Total number of labor hours performed at this location for this FSC
	Total number of labor hours performed at this location for this i be.
Direct Labor Hours	Do <b>not</b> report an estimated number of hours from an offer or proposal
	The hours reported need to be the exact number of labor hours worked.
	Total unburdened dollar amount for direct labor performed at this location
Direct Labor Dollars	for this FSC. This is the total dollar amount paid directly for labor and is
	NOT an hourly rate.
Weapons System Support	This field is not required. Select <b>Not Applicable</b> .
	Indicate if the work completed at the location includes any of the
	following services:
	1. Clinical patient care services in a Department of Defense Medical
Questions about Contract	Treatment facility
Performance	2. Expert or Consulting services
	3. Support Defense Intelligence or Special Operations components
	OCONUS
	4. Not Applicable
Comment	Are the prime contractor or subcontractor personnel subject to relatively
Government Supervision	continuous supervision and control by a government employee or officer

	at this location?
Government's Tools and	Does the government furnish the principal tools and equipment needed for
Equipment	contract performance at this location?
Government Facility	Are some or all of the prime contractor or subcontractor employees provided with a workspace in a government facility for use on a regular basis?

Fill out the remaining data fields on the Location Details screen, and then click **Save** to submit your location information. If there are any blank required fields or errors, you'll see red error messages at the top of the window. Correct the errors and click **Save** to submit the information.

The images below provide more guidance for the FSC search. After clicking on the **Search for FSC** button, the "Search for Federal Service Code" window will be displayed as shown below.

	DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVI DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY CONTRACTOR MANPOWER REPORTING
Search for Feder	al Service Code e fields below, then select a FSC to complete this step.
Service Category:	•
Code:	
Description:	
1 	Cancel Search For FSC

If you know the FSC that most closely matches the services that were performed at the particular location, you may search directly for that code by doing the following:

- 1. Enter the FSC in the **Code** field.
- 2. Leave the Service Category and Description fields blank.
- 3. Click the Search For FSC button.
- 4. In the example below, a search was done for FSC C118 and the code was selected from the results list.

		UNCLASSI	IFIED/FOR OFFICI	AL USE ONLY	Marra Mala & D		and to south
						τινίς	
Contra		CON	I KACTUK M	ANPOWER	KEPUK	TING	e Test User Contractor
Contract Sea	Search for Fed	eral Servi	<b>ce Code</b>	omplete this step.			
To odit o	Service Category:			(*)			200
permissi	Code:	C118					len
	Description:						
Enter the FSC	in the <b>Code</b> field	l if vou	Cancel	Search For FSC			Dollars
know it. Leave and click <b>Searc</b>	the other fields b ch For FSC.	blank	Arizona / 85004	125	4	2,663	

			NCLASSIFIED/FOR O	FFICIAL USE ONLY		
Contra	0	<b>2</b>	CONTRACTO	EPARTMENT OF THE NAVY	REPORTING	e Test User Contractor
Contract Sea	Sea Sear	rch for Federa rch using one or more ervice Category:	al Service Code fields below, then select a FS	C to complete this step.		202
permissi	Co	ode: C11	.8			ich
Click the blu correct FSC	ue code to C for the loc	select the cation.	Can	cel Search For FSC		Dollars
	Search Re	sults:				
	FSC S	Service Category		Description		
If you ha	C118 /	Architect & Engineering S	Services	Research & Development Facilit	es	
	If the desire Activity tha	ed FSC does not appea It you support. You mu	ar in the Search results, pleas ust select a valid FSC by click	e contact the Department of ing on the code to continue.	the Navy (DON) Requiring	ocation

If you do **not** know the FSC that most closely matches the services that were performed at the particular location, you may narrow your search by category and browse the results by doing the following:

- 1. Select an item from the **Service Category** drop down menu that describes the type of services being performed at the location.
- 2. Leave the Code and Description fields blank.
- 3. Click the Search For FSC button.
- 4. In the example below, a search was done to browse the Medical Services category in order to locate code Q516 for Pediatric Services. The code was then selected from the results list.



		UN	ICLASSIF	IED/FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY		
	and the part					
		Cettos .				
				DEPARTMENT OF THE NAV	Y	
	(@) (		CONT			
			CONT	RACIOR MAINPOW		e <b>Test User</b>
Contra						Contractor
Contract Sea	Se	earch for Federa	Service	e Code		
Order D	Se	earch using one or more fi	ields below.	then select a FSC to complete this step.		
To edit c		Service Category: Med	lical Services			hen
permissi		Code:	_			
Browse th	e results	and click the				
blue code	to select	the correct		Cancel Search For FS	SC	Dollars
FSC for th	location	n.				
					1234	
If you ha	FSC	Service Category		Description		
	Q515	Medical Services		Pathology Services	Depending on the num	ber of
	Q516	Medical Services		Pediatric Services	regulta aliak the page	numboro
	Q517	Medical Services		Pharmacology Services	te view edditionel 500	numbers
	Q518	Medical Services		Physical Medicine & Rehabilitation Services	to view additional FSC	

If there are multiple Locations or FSCs for an Order number, you must enter a separate record for each unique Location/Federal Service Code pair.

#### Note

• The Location Data elements should be reviewed by the COR/COTR in charge of overseeing the contract. The COR/COTR should also edit any incorrect data if necessary.

#### 6.6 Bulk Loader:

The Bulk Loader feature is available for uploading multiple records that need to be entered into the Location Data section. Click on the **Bulk Loader** link located below the "Location Information" table to access the feature.

#### Note

- Contract and Order data **MUST** be entered/completed manually before the Bulk Loader can be used to add locations.
- Attempting to upload locations before Contract or Order data is complete will result in errors and locations not being uploaded.

To enter multiple locations records using a .csv file, complete the following steps. Please note that the Order Details for each Contract and Order number must be entered in CMRA before the Location data is uploaded.

1. Download the template Bulk Loader Template (.CSV)

Contractor Manpower Reporting Application User Guide

2. Download the Bulk Loader Instructions and Code Lookups (.XLS)

3. Complete the required fields in the template. Instructions must be followed exactly or the database will not recognize and be able to process the records.

- 4. Save the completed template to your computer as a .csv file.
- 5. Upload the completed template as a .csv file by clicking the **Browse** button and selecting the .csv file you saved.
- 6. Click the **Submit** button.
- 7. If there are any errors, they will be displayed on screen. Correct the errors and repeat the upload process. (Steps 4-6)

#### Note

• You must enter a new row for each Location or FSC. Also, you cannot change the order of the columns and should not enter symbols (\$ . ' .) in any data field.

#### 6.7 Fund Cite Data:

Prime Contractors and subcontractors are **not** expected to enter this information into the CMRA. The COR/COTR is responsible for reviewing the Fund Cite data in the application.

The image below shows the Fund Cite tab and "Fund Cite Information" table.

Contract Sear	ch Reports			We You are logged in as a <b>P</b>	elcome <b>Test User</b> P <b>rime Contractor</b>			
Order Data Co To edit or delete permissions allow Fund Cite Informat	Order Data       Contact Data       Fund Cite         To edit or delete an existing entry, click the Edit (2) or Delete (3) icon, respectively, in the table, which are present when permissions allow.         Fund Cite Information         Passis Symbol       Operating Accept         Department       Object Class							
🕜 🔂 1804 - Navy	88 - Commander, Nava	Special Warfare Command	17 - Department of the Navy	002 - Defense-Military:Navy	2014			

The explanations in the table below are provided to Prime Contractors and Subcontractors as a reference only.

All Fund Cites for a specific contract will be displayed on the **Fund Cite** tab. To view details of a fund cite, look at the "Fund Cite Information" table on the **Fund Cite** tab. To edit a Fund Cite, click on the **Edit** icon to the left of the fund cite row. The **Edit** and **Delete** icons are only present when permissions allow. To add a new Fund Cite, click on the **Add Fund Cite** button. If the button is not enabled, you either do not have permission to add Fund Cites or you have not claimed the order properly.

All fields on the **Fund Cite** tab can be edited, except for the Fund Cite number. After entering and/or editing the data on this tab, click the **Save** button to save the updated information. After entering the required data for the new Fund Cite, click the **Save** button to save the updated information.

Required Field	Explanation of Required Field
Basic Symbol	A four-digit code indicating the type of funds or major purpose of the appropriation.
Operating Agency	Organization responsible for managing funds to include receiving or issuing funds or organization under whose jurisdiction the installation or activity operates when making deposit fund transactions.
Department Code	Code that identifies the department receiving the appropriation.
Object Class	Three-digit code that identifies the type of resource being employed or consumed.
Fiscal Year Dollars	Fiscal year that the contract first appears on the inventory.

## 7. REPORTS

This section provides guidance on viewing and exporting reports. Report types vary based on the individual user role. For a more detailed description of the different report types, refer to the individual user guide that pertains to you.

#### 7.1 View Report

To view a report, select the **Reports** tab. The tab will display the report(s) that you are authorized to view. Select the report you wish to view by clicking the *Report Title* link of the report in the **Report Title** column.

	DEPARTMENT OF THE NAVY	rting		
Contract Search Reports You are logged in as a Prime Con				
To view a Report, click on the Re	port Title from the list below.			
Report Title	Description			
Report Title Prime Contractor Verification Report (Aggregate)	Description           Prime contract data entry verification report, aggregated to the order nu contract orders.	umber level; includes only your Prime		
Report Title Prime Contractor Verification Report (Aggregate) Prime Contractor Verification Report (Detail)	Description           Prime contract data entry verification report, aggregated to the order nu contract orders.           Prime contract data entry verification report; all locations for all contract	umber level; includes only your Prime or prime orders.		
Report Title Prime Contractor Verification Report (Aggregate) Prime Contractor Verification Report (Detail) Cl	Description           Prime contract data entry verification report, aggregated to the order nuccontract orders.           Prime contract data entry verification report: all locations for allocations for all	or prime orders.		

On the next screen, select the appropriate report filters of the report you would like to view (i.e. Fiscal Year). Click on the **View Report** button after selecting the report filters.

If there are no reports for the fiscal year option you have selected, the following message will display, "The report did not return any data."

#### 7.2 Export Report

You may export a report to Microsoft Excel by clicking on the **Export to Excel** button after selecting the report filters. Once you have exported this file, you may save the report onto your hard drive.

#### 7.3 Marking FOUO Information

The information compiled within the DON CMRA is FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY and must be marked appropriately. Unclassified documents and material containing FOUO information shall be marked as follows:

- Documents will be marked FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY at the bottom of the front cover (if there is one), the title page (if there is one), the first page, and the outside of the back cover (if there is one).
- Pages of the document that contain FOUO information shall be marked FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY at the bottom.-
- Material other than paper documents (for example, slides, computer media, films, etc.) shall bear markings which alert the holder or viewer that the material contains FOUO information.

## **APPENDIX: GLOSSARY**

Term	Acronym	Definition
Basic Symbol	BSYM	A four-digit code indicating the type of funds or major purpose of the appropriation.
Commercial and Government Entity Code	CAGE Code	CAGE Code is used to identify companies doing or wishing to do business with the federal government.
City		City or Installation where contract service work is performed.
Command		Command that would be performing the mission if not for the Contractor.
Contractor Man-year Equivalent	CME	Defined as Direct Labor Hours/2087. Automatically calculated by CMRA.
Contracting Officer's (Technical) Representative	COR/COTR	Individual designated by the contracting officer to assist in the technical monitoring or administration of a contract.
Contracting Officer	KO	A person with the authority to enter into, administer, and/or terminate contracts and make related determinations and findings on behalf of the federal government.
Country		Country where the work is performed.
Delivery Order/Task Order Number		Order number for contracts with multiple award contracts. Each contract may have a Delivery Order, a Task Order or neither (enter as 0000).
Department Code		A two or four digit code that identifies the department receiving the appropriation.
Determination of Personal Services		A determination by the Requiring Activity whether or not the contract services involve authorized or unauthorized personal services.
Direct Labor Dollars		The total <b>unburdened</b> (not including goods, overhead or benefits) dollar amount for direct labor performed at this location for this FSC code.
Direct Labor Hours		The total number of labor hours performed at this location for this FSC code.
Department of Defense Activity Address Code	DoDAAC	An office that performs assigned post-award and pre-award functions related to administration of contracts. The DoD Activity Address Code is the 6-character DoDAAC number.
E-mail Address		The e-mail address of the user. This e-mail address will serve as the user's CMRA User Name.
Object Class	OC	A three-digit code which identifies the type of resource being employed or consumed.
Federal Service Code	FSC	Code describing the service or product provided to the DON Requiring Activity.
Fiscal Year	FY	The fiscal year is the accounting period of the federal government. It begins on October 1 and ends on September 30 of the next calendar year. Each fiscal year is identified by the calendar year in which it ends and commonly is referred to as "FY." For example, FY2003 began October 1, 2002, and ends September 30, 2003.
Fiscal Year Activity First on Inventory		The fiscal year when the contract services first appear on the inventories of contracts for services required by NDAA 08 § 807.

Fiscal Year Reporting       The fiscal year when contract services were performed by the vendor for the DON. If a contract crosses fiscal years then the contractor must report the services provided in each fiscal year separately.	Fiscal Year Reporting		The fiscal year when contract services were performed by the vendor for the DON. If a contract crosses fiscal years then the contractor must report the services provided in each fiscal year separately.
---	-----------------------	--	---

Functions Performed by Contractor		The full name of the Product Service Code (PSC)/Federal Service Code (FSC) Code.
Fund Cite		The Accounting Classification obtained from Army Contracting Business Intelligence System
Fund Cite Fiscal Year		The FY that dollars are obligated. The Program Year of the fund cite number
If Competed, Number of Offerors		The number of offerors that competed for the listed action.
Installation of Service		Installation where the work is performed.
Missions Performed by Contractor		The descriptor of the first character of the FSC Code.
Non-Department of Defense Purchasing Agency		Purchase purchased via interagency agreement (i.e. GSA, DOI, etc.)
Operating Agency	OA	<ul> <li>a. An organization responsible for managing funds to include receiving or issuing funds.</li> <li>b. An organization under whose jurisdiction the installation or activity operates when making deposit fund transactions.</li> </ul>
Performance-based Acquisition	PBSA	An acquisition structured around the results to be achieved as opposed to the manner by which the work is to be performed.
Requiring Activity Unit Identification Code	RA UIC	The Unit Identification Code (UIC) of the Requiring Activity; the DON activity that requires contracted services to accomplish its mission.
Resource Manager	RM	Generates information useful as a baseline for programming and documenting contractor support. Validates and corrects CMRA inputs from their respective organizations and with submitting data for contracts that have not been input by contractors working on service contracts for their commands.
Requiring Activity	RA	Activity that requires the contracted services to accomplish their mission.
Services Purchased		The first character of the Product Service Code (PSC)/Federal Service Code (FSC).

Small Business	SB	"Small business concern" means a concern, including its affiliates, that is independently owned and operated, not dominant in the field of operation in which it is bidding on Government contracts, and qualified as a small business under the criteria and size standards in 13 CFR part 121 (see <u>19.102</u> ). Such a concern is "not dominant in its field of operation" when it does not exercise a controlling or major influence on a national basis in a kind of business activity in which a number of business concerns are primarily engaged. In determining whether dominance exists, consideration must be given to all appropriate factors, including volume of business, number of employees, financial resources, competitive status or position, ownership or control of materials, processes, patents, license agreements, facilities, sales territory, and nature of business activity. (See 15 U.S.C. 632.) <i>(From FAR Part 2)</i>

Small Disadvantaged Business	SDB	"Small disadvantaged business concern" (except for $52.212-3$ (c)(2) and $52.219-1$ (b)(2) for general statistical purposes and $52.212-3$ (c)(7)(ii), $52.219-22$ (b)(2), and $52.219-23$ (a) for joint ventures under the price evaluation adjustment for small disadvantaged business concerns), means an offeror that represents, as part of its offer, that it is a small business under the size standard applicable to the acquisition; and either-
		(1) It has received certification as a small disadvantaged business concern consistent with 13
		CFR part 124, subpart B; and
		(i) No material change in disadvantaged ownership and control has occurred since its certification;
		<ul> <li>(ii) Where the concern is owned by one or more disadvantaged individuals, the net worth of each individual upon whom the certification is based does not exceed \$750,000 after taking into account the applicable exclusions set forth at 13 CFR 124.104(c)(2);</li> </ul>
		and
		(iii) It is identified, on the date of its representation, as a certified small disadvantaged business concern in the data base maintained by the Small Business Administration (PRO-Net); or
		(2) For a prime contractor, it has submitted a completed application to the Small Business Administration or a private certifier to be certified as a small disadvantaged business concern in accordance with 13 CFR part 124, subpart B, and a decision on that application is pending, and that no material change in disadvantaged ownership and control has occurred since it submitted its application. In this case, a contractor must receive certification as a small disadvantaged business by the Small Business Administration prior to contract award.
State		State where contract service work is performed.
Subcontractor		An individual or company hired by a prime contractor to perform a specific task as part of the overall project.
Total Invoiced Amount		The total dollar amount of all invoices submitted for the contract delivery order or task order in the fiscal year including invoices that have not been paid.

Women-Owned Small Business	WOSB	<ul> <li>"Women-owned small business concern" means a small business concern</li> <li>(1) That is at least 51 percent owned by one or more women; or, in the case of any publicly owned business, at least 51 percent of the stock of which is owned by one or more women; and</li> <li>(2)Whose management and daily business operations are controlled by one or more women. <i>(From FAR Part 2)</i></li> </ul>
Zip Code		Zip Code where contract service work is performed.